Motivation

DUMIES

Gillian Burn

Health Consultant and Master Practitioner in Neuro-linguistic Programming

A Reference for the Rest of Us!°





Motivation

DUMIES



Gillian Burn

Health Consultant and Master Practitioner in Neuro-linguistic Programming

A Reference for the Rest of Us!°



Motivation For Dummies[®]

Visit www.dummies.com/how-to/content/motivation-for-dummies-cheat-cheat-sheet-uk-edition.html to view this book's cheat sheet.

Table of Contents

Introduction

About This Book
Conventions Used in This Book
What You're Not to Read
Foolish Assumptions
How This Book Is Organised

Part I: Understanding the Basics of Motivation
Part II: Identifying and Maintaining Change
Part III: Arming Yourself with Motivational
Tools
Part IV: Using Motivation in Different Areas of

<u>Part IV: Using Motivation inDifferent Areas of</u> Your Life

Part V: The Part of Tens Appendix

<u>Icons Used in This Book</u> Where to Go from Here

Part I: Understanding the Basics of Motivation

Chapter 1: Introducing Motivation

Figuring Out What Motivation Is
Knowing How to Maintain Motivation
Recognising How Motivation Helps You
Identifying the Barriers
Looking Into Your Brain or Body for Answers

What motivation feels like
Watching for signs of demotivation

<u>Chapter 2: Exploring the Psychology of Motivation</u>

<u>Understanding the Stages of Motivation</u>

Exploring Maslow's theory
Relating yourself to each stage

Exploring How the Psychology Can Help

Hertzberg's hygiene factors
Theory X and Theory Y
The reality of Theory X and Theory Y

<u>Testing the Level of Motivation in Your Work</u> <u>Taking Your Mind on a Journey</u>

<u>Unravelling the mystery of Bandura's self-efficacy</u>
<u>Taking control of your mind</u>

Struggling to Maintain Motivation

Finding your inner strength Overcoming the barriers

<u>Chapter 3: Preparing Yourself for Motivation</u>

Identifying Your Priorities

Starting with the end in sight Highlighting what matters to you

Getting Yourself Ready

Choosing a start date
Committing to the first action

Creating a Motivational Environment

Evaluating your environment

Motivating music

Setting up a supportive network

Part II: Identifying and Maintaining Change

<u>Chapter 4: Summoning the Motivation to Change</u>

Finding a Catalyst for Change
Taking Your First Steps
Discovering Values That Motivate
Recognising Your Roadblocks

<u>Identifying your demotivators</u> <u>Acknowledging your excuses</u>

Making Use of the Positive By-Products

Chapter 5: Goal Setting

Defining Your Goals

<u>Applying the SMART rule</u> <u>Taking steps to action</u>

Prioritising Your Goals

Deciding the focus
Choosing quick wins
Dividing goals into achievable chunks

Facing Your Demons

Identifying your demons
Tackling your demons to keep you
motivated towards your goals

<u>Chapter 6: Maintaining Motivation Now and Beyond</u>

<u>Visualising Motivation</u>

Seeing your success
Gauging your feelings
Hearing the praise
Travelling through time

Propelling Yourself Forward

Acknowledging your success Steering a clear course

Chapter 7: Dealing with Setbacks

Overcoming Setbacks and Struggles

<u>Understanding setbacks</u>
<u>Seeing the positive</u>
<u>Reminding yourself of the benefits</u>
<u>Refocusing on the rewards</u>

Creating Contingency Plans

Knowing who to call on for help Updating your action plan

Knowing When Fear Affects You

Facing the fear Controlling your fears

Part III: Arming Yourself with Motivational Tools

Chapter 8: Using Incentives to Motivate

Benefiting from Incentives at Home and at Work
Creating Incentives

Personal incentives
Business incentives

<u>Exploring Different Incentives for Different</u> Interests Personally speaking: matching your interest to the reward
Keeping employees happy and motivated: finding the right reward

Chapter 9: Quizzing Your Brain Cells

Scoring Your Personal Motivation
Raising Your Personal Motivation Score
Exploring the Brain

Different sides, different processes
Recognising the differences between
sexes
Are you thinking with your left side or
right side?
Connecting to both sides

<u>Practising Motivational Exercises</u>

Activities to try
Visualisation: Experiencing the future
Stepping into motivation

<u>Chapter 10: Using Neuro-linguistic Programming</u> <u>as a Motivating Tool</u>

<u>Just What Is Neuro-linguistic Programming?</u> <u>Finding Out What Makes You Tick</u>

<u>Using the senses in motivation</u> <u>Exploring the senses in more detail</u> <u>Looking at the other person's point of</u> view

Exploring Logical Levels
Identifying the Positive By-Products of
Inactivity

<u>Part IV: Using Motivation in Different Areas of Your Life</u>

Chapter 11: Motivation at Work

Inspiring Yourself Through Motivation

Realising what's in it for me Keeping on track Using multiple intelligences tostrengthen your motivation

Knowing When to Stop

<u>Prioritising other tasks</u> <u>Rewarding quick wins</u>

Boosting Your Team

<u>Using human desire to motivate your team</u>
<u>Exploring team goals</u>
<u>Identifying team barriers</u>

<u>Chapter 12: Money Matters - Yes and No</u>

The Motivating Effects of Money

Exploring the hierarchy of personal financial needs

Buying choices

Reaping the benefits of money

Linking financial incentives with goals

Keeping the Motivation Going

Chapter 13: Health and Wellbeing

<u>Avoiding Illness and Disease</u> <u>Creating a Healthier Lifestyle</u>

<u>Deciding your food priorities</u>
<u>Quitting smoking</u>
<u>Staying sober</u>
<u>Taking time out to relax and recharge</u>
<u>Making exercise fun</u>

<u>Chapter 14: Developing and Growing Your</u> Emotions and Your Behaviour

Setting Out On Your Emotional Journey

<u>Identifying your feelings</u>
<u>Choosing the right responses</u>

<u>Leaping Forward</u>
<u>Making Personal Changes</u>
<u>Growing and Developing through New Challenges</u>

Embracing change Leaving your comfort zone

Chapter 15: Motivating Your Relationships

<u>Identifying What Motivates Your Family</u>

Examining your family's motivators

Meeting your family's preferences

Knowing What Motivates Your Colleagues

<u>Creating a motivating support group</u> <u>Exploring a win/win approach</u>

<u>Acknowledging Individuality</u>

Exploring hidden talents
Embracing personal choice
Tuning into other people's values
Thinking about individual preferences

Discovering Your Mindsets

Knowing why mindsets matter Changing your mindset

Part V: The Part of Tens

<u>Chapter 16: Ten Great Motivating People</u>

<u>David Beckham</u> <u>Richard Branson</u> <u>Winston Churchill</u> Lewis Hamilton
Nelson Mandela
Jamie Oliver
The Queen
JK Rowling
Margaret Thatcher
Tiger Woods

Chapter 17: Ten (Or So) Motivational Exercises

Using Similes to Boost Your Motivation
Thinking Like a Child
Taking the Brain's Perspective
Drawing a Motivated Person
Using Role Models
Taking a Different Approach
Creating a Motivational Resource Bank
Having Fun with Pictures
Motivation Through Exercise
Playing the Game of Reversal
Six Words Motivational Exercise

<u>Chapter 18: Ten Daily Actions for Keeping Your</u> <u>Motivation High</u>

Keeping Focused On Your End Goal
Taking Time Out to Speak with Your Friends
Planning Your Time
Having Contingency Plans in Place
Tuning Into Your Intuition
Knowing the Value of Half Time
Dealing with Your Fears

Doing Something Enjoyable Towards Your
Goal
Keeping Your Confidence High
Rewarding Yourself for Successes along the
Way

Appendix: Resource List

Cheat Sheet

Motivation For Dummies $^{\circledR}$ by Gillian Burn



Motivation For Dummies®

Published by
John Wiley & Sons, Ltd
The Atrium
Southern Gate
Chichester
West Sussex
PO19 8SQ
England

E-mail (for orders and customer service enquires): cs-books@wiley.co.uk

Visit our Home Page on www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2008 John Wiley & Sons, Ltd, Chichester, West Sussex, England

Published by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd, Chichester, West Sussex

All Rights Reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, except under the terms of the Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 or under the terms of a licence issued by the Copyright Licensing Agency Ltd, Saffron House, 6-10 Kirby Street, London EC1N 8TS, UK, without the

permission in writing of the Publisher. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Ltd, The Atrium, Southern Gate, Chichester, West Sussex, PO19 8SQ, England, or emailed to permreq@wiley.co.uk, or faxed to (44) 1243 770620.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley Publishing logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Dummies Daily, The Fun and Easy Way, Dummies.com and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty: The publisher, the author, AND ANYONE ELSE INVOLVED IN PREPARING THIS WORK make no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this work and specifically disclaim all warranties, including without limitation warranties of fitness for a particular purpose. No warranty may be created or extended by sales or promotional materials. The advice and strategies contained herein may not be suitable for every situation. This work is sold with the understanding that the publisher is not engaged in rendering legal, accounting, or other professional services. If professional assistance is required, the services of a competent professional person should be sought. Neither the publisher nor the author shall be liable for damages arising herefrom. The fact that an organization or Website is referred to in this work as a citation and/or a potential source of further information does not mean that the author or the publisher endorses the information the organization or Website may provide or recommendations it

may make. Further, readers should be aware that Internet Websites listed in this work may have changed or disappeared between when this work was written and when it is read.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

For technical support, please visit www.wiley.com/techsupport.

Wiley also publishes its books in a variety of electronic formats. Some content that appears in print may not be available in electronic books.

British Library Cataloguing in Publication Data: A catalogue record for this book is available from the British Library

ISBN: 978-0-470-76035-2

Printed and bound in Great Britain by TJ International, Padstow, Cornwall

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1



About the Author

Gillian Burn is a health consultant, coach, and trainer. She specialises in enabling individuals and companies to improve their energy and personal effectiveness by focusing on enhancing health and quality of life. She is the editor of *Personal Development All-in-One For Dummies* and the author of two

management pocketbooks – the *Energy and Well-Being Pocketbook* and the *NLP Pocketbook*.

Gillian's health career started in nursing, midwifery, and health visiting, alongside a period working with the Flying Doctor Service in the Australian outback. Her business career began with BUPA, a major health care company, designing programmes to improve health at work and reduce sickness absence. Gillian's management experience covered sales, marketing, team management, and product design for health-atwork initiatives delivered to major organisations throughout the UK.

Gillian is director of her own company – Health Circles Ltd – providing a range of well-being and motivation initiatives for companies throughout the UK and Europe. Her training programmes include exercise, nutrition, stress and time management, communication, and creating peak energy. She also runs personal effectiveness courses, including mind mapping[®] and speed reading.

Passionate about supporting people to boost their energy, creativeness, and motivation, Gillian believes that everyone has the skills and talent to make positive changes to enable them to reach their full potential and peak performance.

Author's Acknowledgments

Writing this book has given me the opportunity to put into practice all the tips, tools, and ideas I have believed in to keep me on track and maintain my own motivation.

To my family, clients, colleagues, Pilates students, and fellow trainers, thank you for your stories, anecdotes, inspiration, and support.

To the whole team at Wiley, including Sam, Wejdan, and Steve, who have kept me on track and provided gentle guidance and encouragement throughout the project.

To my partner John for his amazing encouragement to help me on the whole journey and for your patience for the hours I have been attached to the computer.

Finally, and most importantly, I want to thank my colleague Liz Harris, whose editorial advice and continual support has been tremendous and a wonderful guiding voice throughout the whole project.

Publisher's Acknowledgements

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments through our Dummies online registration form located at www.dummies.com/register/.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial, and Media Development

Project Editor: Steve Edwards

Content Editor: Nicole Burnett

Executive Editor: Samantha Spickernell

Development Editor: Kelly Ewing

Commissioning Editor: Samantha Spickernell

Copy Editor: Christine Lea

Proofreader: Helen Heyes

Technical Editor: Averil Leimon

Publisher: Jason Dunne

Executive Project Editor: Daniel Mersey

Cover Photos: © Ron Chapple Stock/Alamy

Cartoons: Ed McLachlan

Composition Services

Project Coordinator: Lynsey Stanford

Layout and Graphics: Reuben W. Davis, Nikki Gately, Melissa K.

Jester, Christine Williams

Proofreader: John Greenough

Indexer: Christine Spina Krapeles

Brand Reviewer: Carrie Burchfield

Introduction

Motivation is all about having the willpower to get started – and once you get going it can direct your life in many ways. It's possible to feel more motivated at some stages of your life than at others, or that your motivation is being affected by other people and events around you. You may even be asking yourself how well motivated you are and whether you could be better!

Motivation For Dummies helps you understand the key elements of motivation and how motivation influences your behaviour and achieving your goals. I've designed each chapter to help you apply the principles of motivation to different areas of your life in a variety of situations, with stories, activities, and exercises to help you along the way. I encourage you to jump in, use the tools, and have a go. Often you find what you're looking for while trying out new ideas.

So, hop on board and get started on your journey to a more motivated life.

About This Book

When you look up 'motivation' in a dictionary you find a list of alternative meanings, such as encourage, stimulate, spur, energise. If you search on the Internet, you can expect to find over 55 million references to motivation linked to sport, work, business, personal life, and that's just a start! There are also over a million references to books about motivation, bringing home to you the depth and breadth of the subject, and the variety of ways you can use motivation in your life.

Your task ahead is to pinpoint which areas of your life are going to benefit from you being more motivated. This means looking closely at your situation to see where you can or need to make changes. Motivation can help you to:

- ✓ Boost your energy to achieve your goals
- Summon up your enthusiasm to get started
- Understand what's getting in your way
- Change direction or behave differently
- ✓ Make your job more inspirational
- ✓ Show you how and when to get into action
- Realign your relationships in your work and personal life
- ✓ Positively influence your health and wellbeing

Conventions Used in This Book

To highlight particular points and make your reading easier, I've set up a few conventions:

- ✓ Italics are used for emphasis and to introduce new terms.
- **▶ Bold** text is used to indicate the key idea in a list.
- Monofont text is used for website and email addresses to make them stand out.

What You're Not to Read

This book is intended as a hands-on guide to motivation. If you're pushed for time, you don't need to read *everything* in the book from cover to cover. In particular, you can skip:

- The text in the sidebars: the shaded boxes that appear here and there contain extra information or stories and anecdotes nice to read but not essential to the topic in hand, so you can safely skip them if you're not interested.
- ✓ The stuff on the copyright page: you'll find nothing here
 of interest unless you're looking for legal notices and
 reprint information. If you are, then this is the place to
 look!

Foolish Assumptions

When writing this book, I made a few assumptions about you. I'm assuming that you're a normal human being who wants to be happy and motivated. You're keen to find out how you can improve various areas of your life and how getting motivated can help you achieve your goals.

How This Book Is Organised

The book is divided into five parts so you can quickly see what you need to know at any moment. The Table of Contents gives

you the full details of what's in each chapter.

Part I: Understanding the Basics of Motivation

In this part, I explain what I mean by motivation and how it can impact on your everyday life. You explore the psychology of motivation and how you can apply the theories to real-life situations. You also discover how to prepare yourself for motivation by highlighting your priorities, tuning into your brain, and creating a motivating environment for yourself.

Part II: Identifying and Maintaining Change

Knowing how to summon up the motivation to change and plan for action is a key starting point. You also explore how to face your demons and deal with setbacks so that you can set goals and keep yourself motivated in the long term.

Part III: Arming Yourself with Motivational Tools

In this part, I show you the tools you need to help get you motivated. You take a journey inside your brain and look at ways of stimulating your motivation using some of the techniques of Neuro-linguistic Programming. You also take a look at incentives and rewards to find out how they work in keeping you motivated.

Part IV: Using Motivation in Different Areas of Your Life

In this part, you look at how you can use motivation in your personal relationships, the workplace, and in your career. You also take a look at how motivation affects your health and wellbeing, and how motivation can help you develop and grow when changing direction or responding to new challenges.

Part V: The Part of Tens

This is where you go for a few ideas for keeping yourself or your team at work motivated. I suggest some fun exercises, tips, and ideas to keep you moving forward, and some actions you can take every day to keep yourself motivated. You can also read the stories of ten inspirational and highly motivated people who can act as your role models.

Appendix

The Appendix contains a selection of additional resources, including books and training websites, that you can also use to help you on your motivation journey.

Icons Used in This Book

Some information in this book is so important and interesting that it's highlighted by an icon.

Here you find human interest stories that you may find inspiring or useful.

The bull's-eye highlights practical advice you can use as an on-the-spot motivation booster.

This icon gives you an exercise to do to give you the chance of experiencing what it feels like to be motivated.

Take special note of the information I give you here and keep it in mind as you apply the principles of motivation in your life.

Where to Go from Here

Turning to the next page takes you straight into an explanation of motivation. But you don't have to start at Chapter 1 and keep going to the end. You may decide that certain topics are more interesting or are more meaningful for you at the moment. So, look them up in the Index and flip to the relevant page. You can also use the Table of Contents at the front of the book to see what catches your fancy.

If, after reading *Motivation For Dummies*, you're keen for more, take a look at the further guidance and resources I recommend at www.healthcircles.co.uk.

Part I Understanding the Basics of Motivation



'You said you needed something bigger to motivate you, Bagwort, so we're transferring you to the elephant house.'

In this part. . .

Here you set off on your motivation journey. You begin to understand what motivation is all about, look at the principles of motivation, and find out how motivation fits into your life. You also explore the psychology behind motivation. So, don't hold back a minute longer, get moving!

Chapter 1

Introducing Motivation

In This Chapter

- Explaining motivation
- Deciding how motivation can help you
- Getting your brain and body working for you

Getting yourself motivated to achieve a desired goal lies at the heart of your success. In this chapter, you discover what being motivated means, how motivation can help you, and the way your brain and body interact to keep you fully motivated.

Figuring Out What Motivation Is

Motivation is a feeling, an emotional force, stimulating and encouraging you to do something. You feel motivated by factors or stimuli – internal or external – rousing you into action and fulfilling a need:

- ✓ **Internal:** Feeling hungry motivates you to eat an intrinsic need coming from inside yourself.
- **External:** Showing poor sales results motivates you to attract more clients to increase business an extrinsic need coming from outside yourself.

Think of a time when you felt highly motivated in your job. You enjoyed going to work and having a sense of achievement at seeing your projects come to fruition. Your efforts were rewarded with a good salary; you had support from your manager, and the authority to make your own decisions. You got along well with your colleagues and delighted in the office camaraderie. You felt valued and that you contributed to the success of the business.

The key motivators at work in this instance are: achieving success, financial reward, camaraderie, and feeling valued.

Here are three real-life examples of internal and external stimuli:

- Daniel runs a small hotel business, which has been in his family for three generations. It's hard work, involves long hours, and isn't hugely financially rewarding. The stimuli that help Daniel maintain his motivation to keep the business going are both intrinsic and extrinsic. Intrinsically he feels it's important to uphold the family tradition as hoteliers. It satisfies his sense of continuity and staying faithful to his roots. The extrinsic stimulus comes from his staff. Daniel feels responsible for his staff and their livelihoods, particularly as several of them have been with his business for many years.
- A teacher friend of mine tutors children to help them improve their reading skills. She told me how positive and motivated she felt when, just after one session, the other teachers commented on how they'd noticed an improvement in the children's reading ability. My friend travels a long way to the school for the sessions, but feels it is worth all the effort to see the improvement in the children's reading skills and hear the positive

comments from the teachers. Her initial success stimulated her motivation to keep up the good work as well as giving her the feeling that she's really making a difference.

I have been a member of a rowing club on the Thames for several years. Soon after joining the club I took part in a competition called a scratch regatta. On the day of the regatta the names of each crew were picked out of a hat, mixing together novice and experienced rowers. I rowed with three other people of varying abilities. On winning the first race we felt great. Then we went on to win the second and third rounds and make it into the final. When we went over the finishing line first I was elated. I can still remember how excited I felt receiving the trophy, and how motivated I felt to keep up my rowing. What motivated me was a combination of three factors: enjoying the team work, winning the competition, and receiving the trophy. That motivation has stayed with me ever since!

You can also be motivated because of the consequences of *not* doing something. For example, the fear of a financial penalty through missing the deadline for your tax return motivates you to complete it on time. Or, the humiliation at not being able to wear your favourite outfits because you have put on a lot of weight motivates you to join a slimming club.

Motivation is the force driving you forward to make a change, for example, toward a goal (looking fit and healthy), or away from something you want to change (being overweight and unfit).



Different motivators for different people

On 31 January 2008, approximately 300,000 people in the UK were busy trying to file their self-assessment tax returns online, having known about this deadline since 5 April 2007, but choosing to leave filling in their tax returns until the last possible moment. Many people worked throughout the night to beat the deadline and avoid a financial penalty. The sheer volume of users of the system that night caused the system to fail, and 100,000 returns couldn't be submitted! The Government had to extend the deadline by 24 hours in order to get the computer system up and running again. The moral of this story: plan well in advance!

In this instance the fear of the financial penalty was a poor motivator, as many people missed the deadline. A more positive motivator could have been the offer of a rebate of £200 for anyone completing the return early. HM Revenue & Customs now actually use this approach, offering individuals a £150 incentive for completing their self-assessment tax forms online rather than by using traditional paper copies.

In January 2008, a relatively unknown English non-league football club, Havant and Waterlooville, won their FA Cup competition game unexpectedly. This gave them the chance of a lifetime to play against Liverpool, a premier league football team, in the Liverpool stadium. Liverpool had won the European Cup more times than any other English side and had several world-class players in their team. In contrast, the Havant and Waterlooville team was made up of part-time players having day jobs such as electricians and plumbers.

The day Havant and Waterlooville went to Liverpool was no different for them than for Liverpool. Havant and Waterlooville were defeated, but had a very respectable 5:2 score and received a standing ovation at the end of the game from the Liverpool players and the 42,000 spectators. Havant and Waterlooville had played better than anyone could've imagined.

The support Havant and Waterlooville received that day from their own 6,000 fans at Liverpool, and their sense of achievement from playing there, will, I am sure, stay with each player for the rest of their lives and motivate